

UNLV Theses, Dissertations, Professional Papers, and Capstones

5-1-2014

Development of a Visualization System for Highway Safety Management Using Safety Analyst

Indira Khanal University of Nevada, Las Vegas, khanalindira11@gmail.com

Follow this and additional works at: https://digitalscholarship.unlv.edu/thesesdissertations

Part of the Civil Engineering Commons

Repository Citation

Khanal, Indira, "Development of a Visualization System for Highway Safety Management Using Safety Analyst" (2014). *UNLV Theses, Dissertations, Professional Papers, and Capstones*. 2107. https://digitalscholarship.unlv.edu/thesesdissertations/2107

This Thesis is protected by copyright and/or related rights. It has been brought to you by Digital Scholarship@UNLV with permission from the rights-holder(s). You are free to use this Thesis in any way that is permitted by the copyright and related rights legislation that applies to your use. For other uses you need to obtain permission from the rights-holder(s) directly, unless additional rights are indicated by a Creative Commons license in the record and/ or on the work itself.

This Thesis has been accepted for inclusion in UNLV Theses, Dissertations, Professional Papers, and Capstones by an authorized administrator of Digital Scholarship@UNLV. For more information, please contact digitalscholarship@unlv.edu.

DEVELOPMENT OF A VISUALIZATION SYSTEM FOR HIGHWAY SAFETY MANAGEMENT USING SAFETY ANALYST

By

Indira Khanal

Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering Tribhuvan University, Nepal

2011

A thesis submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the Master of Science in Engineering - Civil and Environmental Engineering

Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering and Construction

Howard R. Hughes College of Engineering

The Graduate College

University of Nevada, Las Vegas

May 2014



THE GRADUATE COLLEGE

We recommend the thesis prepared under our supervision by

Indira Khanal

entitled

Development of a Visualization System for Highway Safety Management Using Safety Analyst

is approved in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

Master of Science in Engineering -- Civil and Environmental Engineering

Department of Civil and Electrical Engineering

Alexander Paz, Ph.D., Committee Chair

Mohamed Kaseko, Ph.D., Committee Member

Hualiang Teng, Ph.D., Committee Member

Pramen P. Shrestha, Ph.D., Committee Member

Brendan Morris, Ph.D., Graduate College Representative

Kathryn Hausbeck Korgan, Ph.D., Interim Dean of the Graduate College

May 2014

ABSTRACT

Development of a Visualization System for Highway Safety Management Using Safety Analyst

By

Indira Khanal

Dr. Alexander Paz, Examination Committee Chair Assistant Professor Department of Civil and Environmental Engineering and Construction University of Nevada, Las Vegas

The AASHTOWare software, Safety Analyst, is a state-of-the-art tool with significant capabilities and advanced analytical methods for comprehensive analysis and management of highway safety. However, currently, this tool provides very limited visualization capabilities. To address this limitation, this study proposes a Visualization System for Safety Analyst that provides graphical displays, including location and colorcoded information for each module. In addition, the system generates charts, which have various degrees of resolution and aggregation; tables; and a report summarizing safety performance measures. The system can use Google Maps and/or ESRI ArcGIS to generate the graphical displays. The advantage of using Google Maps is its simplicity; in contrast, the ArcGIS display provides additional modeling and computing capabilities. All the displays are very intuitive, and can be customized based on the user needs. Because the user can see the locations of every specific site, the displays facilitate analysis as well as the decision-making process. The Visualization System interacts with Safety Analyst so that the user can access all tools and data throughout the entire modeling and analysis process. A tutorial and a survey questionnaire were used to evaluate the effectiveness and usability of the Visualization System. The results suggest that the participants were very satisfied with the overall concept and performance of the Visualization System. In general, they prefer to use Safety Analyst in conjunction to the Visualization System.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to express my appreciation to my advisor Dr. Alexander Paz for his continuous support, guidance and encouragement. I would like to thank him for his continuous support during my period of study and his precious assistance for writing technical report. Without his support and knowledge this thesis could not have been a success. I would also like to express my thanks to Dr. Mohamed Kaseko, Dr. Hualiang Teng, Dr. Pramen P. Shrestha and Dr. Brendan Morris for their support and for having served on my Thesis Committee.

I am very grateful to Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) for funding this research project. I am very thankful to the representatives from NDOT and University of Nevada, Reno (UNR) for attending the Safety Analyst tutorial and providing me the questionnaire response. I would also like to thank all the UNLV students and 93rd Annual Meeting of Transportation Research Board (TRB) participants who provided me the responses for the questionnaire survey.

I am very thankful to Ms. Julie Longo, Technical writer at the College of Engineering who provided her valuable time for editing the journal paper format of this research study.

Additionally, I cannot forget my colleagues and friends including Naveen Veeramisti, Justin Baker, Loic Belmonte for their help and support in completing this research project. Finally, I would like to thank my family members who have always been a source of inspiration for me.

DEDICATION

This thesis is dedicated to my parents, sister, and brother.

Thank you all for your love, support and care.

I love you all.

ABSTRACT	iii
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS	V
DEDICATION	vi
LIST OF TABLES	ix
LIST OF FIGURES	x
CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background	1
1.2 Problem Statement	2
1.3 Study Objectives	3
1.4 Organization of Thesis	3
CHAPTER 2 LITERATURE REVIEW	5
2.1 Geographic Information Systems	5
2.2 Comparison of Google Maps and ArcGIS	13
CHAPTER 3 SAFETY ANALYST	15
3.1 Introduction	15
3.2 Input Data	17
3.3 Location Referencing System	19
3.4 Output Files	20
CHAPTER 4 VISUALIZATION SYSTEM FOR SAFETY ANALYST	23

TABLE OF CONTENTS

4.1 Google Maps Display Tool for Visualization	23
4.2 ESRI ArcGIS Display Tool for Visualization	33
CHAPTER 5 EVALUATION OF THE VISUALIZATION SYSTEM	
5.1 Data Collection	
5.2 Data Coding	
5.3 Distribution of Responses	40
5.3.1 Experience with Traffic Safety Studies	40
5.3.2 Experience with Traffic Engineering Studies	41
5.3.3 Experience with Traffic Planning Studies	41
5.3.4 Experience with GIS	41
5.4. Overall Rating	42
5.5. Overall Rating of the Visualization System in Terms of Usability	44
CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSIONS AND FUTURE WORK	46
LIST OF REFERENCES	48
APPENDIX A SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE	52
VITAE	57

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE 1	Format for Safety Analyst Results from Network Screening
TABLE 2	Total Number of Responses
TABLE 3	Number Coding For the Type of Answer of the Respondents40
TABLE 4	Total Numbers of Responses with Traffic Safety Experience40
TABLE 5	Total Numbers of Responses in with Traffic Engineering Experience41
TABLE 6	Total Numbers of Respondents with Transportation Planning Experience41
TABLE 7	Total Numbers of Responses with GIS Experience
TABLE 8	Overall Rating about the Experience with the Visualization System
TABLE 9	Overall Rating about the usability of the Visualization System

LIST OF FIGURES

FIGURE 1 Crash Density map generated by usRAP (AAA, 2013b)
FIGURE 2 Desktop version of CARE interface with sliding window approach 10
FIGURE 3 Web version of CARE interface (CAPS, 2009b) 11
FIGURE 4 GIS interface for Safety Analyst developed by Ma et.al, 2012 12
FIGURE 5 Conceptual framework for the proposed visualization system for Safety
Analyst 17
FIGURE 6 Network screening results in html format
FIGURE 7 Network screening results in csv format
FIGURE 8 Selection of a Module using the Standalone Desktop Application
FIGURE 9 Selection of Network Screening Method using the Standalone Desktop
Application 25
Application
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
 FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst
FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for Safety Analyst

FIGURE 18 Results for economic appraisal and priority ranking, as provided by the	
proposed Visualization System	. 33
FIGURE 19 Visualization with an ArcGIS portal view	. 34
FIGURE 20 Visualization of network screening results in spatial and bar chart format .	. 36
FIGURE 21 Enlarged view of the bar chart generated by the visualization tool	. 37

CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 Background

According to the Strategic Highway Safety Plan (SHSP) (NDOT, 2011) developed by the Nevada Department of Transportation's (NDOT), on average, there are more than 30,000 traffic casualties per year in the US. Approximately, 325 of these casualties occur in Nevada highways. In an attempt to analyze and address traffic safety problems, in 2006, NDOT and the Nevada Department of PublicSafety (DPS) along with other partner agencies prepared the first Strategic Highway safety Plan for Nevada. The Nevada SHSP is a statewide comprehensive plan that seeks to reduce motor vehicle crashes by combining the resources across multi disciplines (NDOT, 2011). Later in 2010, Nevada developed a safety campaign, "Zero Fatalities", with the objective of preventing all traffic fatalities. To support the development of SHSP and provide better solutions for the existing and emerging traffic problems, various federal and state agencies have developed state-of-the-art tools such as the Highway safety Manual (HSM) and Safety Analyst. NDOT is invested in adopting the HSM and Safety Analyst to perform various traffic safety related analyses and activities.

The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASTHO) is currently distributing the HSM and Safety Analyst. The HSM provides a variety of methodologies for highway safety management. It describes both traditional as well as state-of-the-art safety analysis approaches. A Transportation Research Board special report about traffic safety goals in the United States encourages the use of these tools for traffic safety planning and management (TRB, 2010). These tools provide

statistically sound approaches to facilitate the development of comprehensive programs for traffic safety management. These tools use Empirical Bayes to address many limitations associated with traditional methods. Safety Analyst provides software tools to apply the methods in Part B of the HSM for system wide highway safety management (AASHTO, undated). The part B of the HSM and Safety Analyst provides the steps required for highway safety management process. In contrast, Part C of the HSM is proposed for site specific safety analysis (AASHTO, 2010a). It provides predictive methods for estimating expected average crash frequency for a specific site using Safety Performance Functions (SPFs). SPFs provide estimate of predicted average crash frequency under a given traffic volume and geometric condition (AASHTO, 2010a).

1.2 Problem Statement

A limitation of Safety Analyst is the lack of visualization capabilities to support the analysis of results. This is a significant issue considering the spatial nature of traffic safety. Results from the analysis are provided to the user in a tabular form. In a recent version (4.3.1), released on June of 2013, a map viewer capability was added (AASHTO, 2013). However, this viewer does not allow multiple displays. It only displays a single site at a time. In addition, the user needs to be very familiar with the Analytical Tool in Safety Analyst in order to be able to use the map viewer. It requires significant learning and time. Hence, this research project proposed the development of an alternative and effective method to visualize in a graphical and spatial format the results generated by Safety Analyst. In addition, this study tries to evaluate the effectiveness of the proposed method based on users' needs and perceptions.

1.3 Study Objectives

The objective of this study is to develop and evaluate the effectiveness of a visualization system for assessing network safety analysis using Safety Analyst. To accomplish this objective, the following key capabilities are provided by the proposed system:

- graphical displays, including the location and color-coded information for each module in Safety Analyst;
- 2. charts, tables, and a report summarizing safety performance measures; and
- 3. a Google Map and/or ESRI ArcGIS map displaying results .

In addition, a survey of traffic practitioners is conducted to try to evaluate the effectiveness of the proposed system.

1.4 Organization of Thesis

This report is organized in to five chapters: (i) Introduction, (ii) Literature Review, (iii) Safety Analyst, (iv) Visualization System for Safety Analyst, (v) Evaluation of the Visualization System, and (vi) Conclusions and Recommendations.

Chapter 1 provides an overview of the study including background, problem statement and objectives. Chapter 2 reviews literature related to the use of Geographic Information Systems (GIS) for crash data visualization. Chapter 3 provides a relevant overview of Safety Analyst. Chapter 4 discusses the development of the Visualization System for Safety Analyst. This chapter explains the importance of Google and ArcGIS maps. In addition, a description is provided about the limitations of Google Maps compare to ESRI tools and maps. Chapter 5 presents the evaluation of the Visualization System based on users' perceptions. This chapter explains the methodology adopted to evaluate the tool, data collection, analysis and results. Chapter 6 provides the conclusions and recommendations for future research.

CHAPTER 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

Roadway safety management involves the identification of crash locations with potential for improvement, diagnosis and selection of countermeasures, economic analyses of the countermeasures, and before and after safety effectiveness evaluation (Alluri & Ogle, 2011; Gan et al., 2012). Predominantly, GIS is an integral component of numerous crash analysis systems. The graphical display features and mapping capabilities provided by GIS have facilitated the analysis and interpretation of results.

2.1 Geographic Information Systems

GIS has been actively used in wide applications related to transportation engineering, hydraulic modeling and earth sciences. The specific nature of the tool has found its application in crash and pedestrian modeling and human factors (Pulugurtha et al., 2006; Troung and Somenahalli, 2011). Predominantly, various geographic information system (GIS) methods are used to analyze and visualize the data in the field of traffic safety. Graettinger et al. (Graettinger et al., 2005) and Roche (Roche, 2000) discussed how to represent different entities of highway components (roads, crashes, traffic volume) using various features such as lines, points, colors and shapes in ArcGIS. Krishnakumar et al. developed a GIS based tools to identify and rank the sites with potential for pedestrian safety improvements. The tool identifies high crash zones based on kernel density maps and ranks them based on a crash score. The entire map is projected with calculated densities in the ESRI Arc Map (Krishnakumar et al., 2005). The ranking of sites are in separate output in a tabular format. The user has to travel back and forth, to the map and table, to find the ranks and corresponding densities. Likewise, Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT) (ODOT, 2012) developed GCAT (GIS Crash Analysis Tool) which is capable of performing queries and displaying traffic crashes based on different attributes such as crash date, crash severity level, weather conditions, collision types, etc. The queried crashes can also be exported as a text file which could be further analyzed with the Microsoft Excel and the CAM tool developed by ODOT to represent the data with statistical charts and graphs (Aylo, 2010).

Xiao et al (Xiao et al., 2012) developed a road maintenance management system based on WebGIS using ArcGIS server and client system. ArcSDE client and ArcSDE server in the ArcGIS is used for data storage. The data is stored in the SQL format. The authors have developed a Web-based interface for querying, displaying the road maintenance data through thematic maps. But, the study does not provide clear information about the front-end visualization or creation of thematic maps using ArcGIS. Qin and Wellner developed GIS Highway Safety Review Tools (GIS-HSR tools) to identify high risk locations with data driven methodology using Python scripting which can be embedded with other tools in ArcGIS (Qin and Wellner, 2011). However the results interface of this tool lacks intuitive visualization and hence requires manual interpretation of the results.

University of Minnesota and Claremont Graduate University (SafeRoadMaps, 2012) developed SafeRoadMaps visualization tool that produces heat maps. The heat maps provide crash risk across an entire area which is similar to kernel density maps/hotspots in ArcGIS. The tool infers crash risk across the entire map area, instead of considering geometric boundary of entity or area where crashes occur. This limitation restricts use of the tool to its capabilities.

Similar to SafeRoadsMaps, usRAP tool was developed to visualize roadway safety by American Automobile Association (AAA) foundation for traffic safety (AAA, 2013a). This tool is a GIS based application for analyzing traffic safety which helps to determine the sites with highest and lowest risk of traffic crashes and fatalities. These sites are shown in the map with color codes to represent the risk level. This tool provides four basic types of risk maps: crash rate map, crash density map, crash rate ratio map and crash savings map which uses crash data for a five year period. Figure 1 shows the crash density map generated by usRAP with different color code information. The results from this tool are only based on observed crash frequencies. However, this tool can act as a major information source for DOTs and decision makers in setting the safety improvement priorities.



FIGURE 1 Crash Density map generated by usRAP (AAA, 2013b)

Critical Analysis Reporting Environment (CARE) was developed by the Center for Advanced Public Safety at the University of Alabama (CAPS, 2009a). Amongst the visualization tools, CARE tool is more advanced than its peers. CARE was developed primarily for crash analysis with both an online and desktop version. However, this tool can be used to analyze any type of data. It provides tool that allows sorting, analyzing and comparing the data using different variables in the data. The tool is equipped with major functions that allow statistical analyses with charts and graphical displays, hotspots generation, collision diagrams for specific locations, report generation for hotspots and spatial displays with the integration of ArcView.

The online version of CARE is known for its visual representation whereas the desktop version known for its statistical analysis ability. Both the versions provide various graphs with the help of querying and filter techniques based on crash attributes. CARE also has a GIS extension that enables spatial analysis. With this capability, CARE provides the sliding window line diagram. This feature provides a window of specified length that moves over a linear route segment which represents a stack of observed crashes those occurred along the route. This methodology is unique to CARE and easier to interpret the observed crashes. However, CARE does not provide any visual representation of results of high crash locations based on safety analysis (CAPS, 2009a). Figure 2 shows the desktop version of CARE while figure 3 shows the online version.

File Fibers	13 - (High Accident - Filte Analysis Torations Sea	r: None (All records))) Mais Toolis Help										- 5 ×
Delauk Data Sour	nce Nevada Crash Data 200	7-2012-01 • De	eleut Filer 🛛 🖓 records (di	not apply a filter)		Tite Logic							
Route ID 5000000 5000000 50000001 50000001 50000005 500000407		Rissle N 000000 000000 000000 000000 000000 0000	ame 10 13 13 15 15	H 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	otipole > . 37 32 30 35 55	Cas 174 364 339 356 356 356	nes A I		Dataset / Nevrade Crash Data None (At records) Ricular: 1543 Hidlipate 5378 Help	Filter 2007-2012-01 Fair Cire: 1005 Ini Cire: 73452 Tot Cire: 197938	Andynia Reports Reports Prev Hotiput Next Hotiput	Halipata Deele Halipata Deele Stapet Feet Hatapat La	Filter
1	2 3 4	▶5 ▶6	▶7 ▶8 ▶9	▶10 ▶ 11	12 13 14	▶16 ▶16 ▶1	7 🏼 🎽 18	19 20	21 22		2	[Мар 💌
0 404	00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 00	9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9 9		00 00 00 00 00 00 00						2 2 2 4 4	1	Choore	Dari
	ապետուն	In the second	իստությու	a a la cara da	un preserve	պետումպես	munin	աստեսու	սալուստ	վառավ		1.10	CE
Minimum H Crashes L 5 C	lotapol Raule englh 15 m. 00000010	1	Honspats Hotspot Fi Cranhes Cra 137 1440	ter Dasher 17 504	FDO Total Crashes Crashes 1205 1747	Persons Persons Killed Insured 48 733	(1) - X 	x x a	а к к а 1	_ <u>j</u>	2 1 1	Mar fan Stijld Goog	e Temsofilie
Hotepot <	FatEx	lnjūn -	Ding Cit	Tot Crs	Deaths	liquies	Etc/MVM	Sev/En	Coarty	City	BegMP	EndMP	^
2	0	2.	3	20	0	3	0.00	800	Lisk Multiple	Boulder City Other	0.50	1.00	_
3	1	4	8	13	î.	5	0.00	8.45	Multiple	Officer	1.00	1.50	
4	0	5	8	13	1	7	0.00	6.92	Clark	Other	1.50	2.00	
5	0	6	6	12	0	9	0.00	6.67	Clark	Other	2.00	2.50	
6	0	6	8	74	٥	9	0.00	7,14	Clark	Other	250	3.00	
17	0	4	12	16	ũ	4	0.00	4.38	Multiple	Other	3.00	3.50	
8		3	2	b	1	1	0.00	18.33	Lian	Uther	3.50	4.00	
10	2	4) R:	3	3	5	su .	0.00	2011	Cleak	Oter	4.00	500	
10	ň	3	e 2	2	6	3	0.00	250	Eka	00er	500	5.50	
12	1	6	12	19	1	11	0.00	10.00	Clark	Milliole	5.50	5.00	
13	2	8	17	21	2	15	0.00	11.90	Mulicie	Multrie	600	6.50	
14	1	4	10	15	ĩ	6	0.00	8.67	Clerk:	Soulder City	650	7.00	
15	Û	5	8	11	ũ	7	0.00	6.36	Multiple	Boulder City	7.00	7.50	
16	0	12	21	33	0	19	0.00	£06	Clark	Boulder City	7.50	8.00	
17	0	19	34	53	0	26	8.90	5.09	Clark	Multiple	8.00	8.50	
18	1	5	18	24	1	7	0.00	6.25	Clark.	Boulder Eity	8.60	9.10	
19	0	7	14	21	ū	11	0.00	5.24	Clark	Boulder City	9.20	9.70	
20	Ø	4	9	13	0	6	0.00	5.38	Clark	Bouider City	9.70	10.20	
21	0	4	4	8	0	5	0.00	7.50	Clark	Bouider City	10.70	11.20	
22	0	2	3	5	0	2	0.00	8.00	Eko	Other	11.60	1210	
23	0	1	8	5	0	1	0.00	200 222	White Pine Clark	Other Other	13.00	13.50 14.10	1

FIGURE 2 Desktop version of CARE interface with sliding window approach



FIGURE 3 Web version of CARE interface (CAPS, 2009b)

Ma et al developed a GIS system that allows user to select site locations and display the Safety Analyst results spatially. The developed GIS system is capable to visualize both the input and output data of Safety Analyst. The tool allows the users to select the sites to analyze in the analytical tool of Safety Analyst which then provides the output of Safety Analyst in the developed GIS interface (Ma et al., 2012). The snapshot of the interface is shown in figure 4. However, the system developed by them only allows user to visualize the results of network screening module solely for the state of Florida.



FIGURE 4 GIS interface for Safety Analyst developed by Ma et.al, 2012

To the best of our understanding, most of the existing analysis tools, including Safety Analyst, do not provide visualization capabilities that facilitates user understanding of the output of all the modules with ease. This study proposed a Visualization System that addresses the current limitations. The following are the benefits of using the proposed system:

- provides multiple graphical representations of the inputs and outputs for each module in Safety Analyst
- Google map, non-commercial and ESRI ArcGIS, commercial maps are used to display spatial characteristics of the inputs and outputs
- 3. several charts and plots display various safety performance measures

2.2 Comparison of Google Maps and ArcGIS

Google Maps and ArcGIS provide different capabilities and associated limitations. Google maps are easily accessible. In contracts, ArcGIS requires an expensive desktop or server application. Additional characteristics for each of these two technologies are provided below.

Usability

Although ArcGIS is expensive, after purchase, there are not additional fees regardless of loads and usage. In contracts, Google Maps API is free for developers; however, after more than 25000 map loads per day for 90 consecutive days, Google starts charging based on each map load and usage. The user has the option to pay for each map loads or to buy a business version of Google Maps API (Google Developers, 2014).

Security

In general, ArcGIS maps are considered more secured than Google maps. Almost every large agency prefers ArcGIS over Google Maps. Google Maps has open access to the data stored in its cloud. Hence, there is always a chance for security threats unless the agencies host locally. In contrast, ArcGIS provides its own isolated network cloud based facilities for data storage (Landmark Geographic Solutions INC., 2012).

Data formats and maintenance

ArcGIS has the ability to work with a variety of data formats including .shp, .dbf, kml, Geodatabases, WFS and RASTERS. In addition, it can export the data into CAD and dbase files. In contrast, Google Maps are limited to KML and KMZ formats. Most of the initial data creation and maintenance works are performed using ESRI tools. Typically the users of such data prefer working within the ESRI environment over Google Maps. This ultimately requires less data update, data conversion and errors (Landmark Geographic Solutions INC., 2012).

Offline performance

ArcGIS does not require Internet access. Google maps require Internet access. Although Internet is widely available, having the additional option to work offline is an added advantage.

Additional modeling and mapping capability

ArcGIS provides many simple and advance modeling and mapping tools that are not available in Google Maps. Although it is possible to develop those tools in Google Maps, significant programming may be required depending of the complexity of the required tool.

CHAPTER 3

SAFETY ANALYST

3.1 Introduction

As previously mentioned, Safety Analyst provides computer automated state-ofthe-art tools to identify and manage system wide safety improvements in a cost effective way. Safety Analyst (ITT Corporation, 2011) consists of altogether four major tools that serve as a complete package of a highway safety management system: the Administration Tool, the Data Management Tool, the Analytical Tool and the Countermeasure Implementation Tool.

- The Administration Tool provides capabilities to set up Safety analyst software and to manage access to the use of the software. It can be used to create user defined attributes or to modify federally provided default data to include in the analysis such as the default SPFs present in the Safety Analyst can be replaced with the agency specific SPFs. In addition, this tool also provides the facility to edit the diagnosis questions and countermeasures.
- The Data Management Tool provides the capabilities to create and maintain Safety Analyst database. It is used to import the data by mapping a user developed database to Safety Analyst. After database-to-database mapping, post process and calibration can be performed in the same tool.
- The Analytical Tool is composed of four modules, which are responsible for traffic safety analysis and management programs (ITT Corporation, 2011):
 - 1. A *Network Screening Module* that reviews transportation network by employing empirical Bayes (EB) methodology to identify and rank the sites that have the

potential for safety improvements. The EB methodology addresses regression-tothe-mean bias in the observed data. It calculates estimated crash frequency based on observed and predicted crash frequency.

- 2. A *Diagnosis and Countermeasure Selection Module* that diagnoses sites with the accident patterns. It also generates collision diagrams for sites with observed crash characteristics. The countermeasure selection tool selects the list of countermeasures based on the diagnosis as well as a set of built-in questions answered by the users.
- 3. An *Economic Appraisal and Priority Ranking Module* that appraises such economic measures as the benefit-cost ratio and the net present value for multiple, selected alternative countermeasures. Priority ranking tool ranks these countermeasures based on economic appraisal for the implementation.
- 4. A *Countermeasure Evaluation Tool* that performs the 'before' and 'after' evaluation of the effectiveness of the implemented safety countermeasures.
- The *Implemented Countermeasure Tool* provides the capabilities to create a database comprised of the date, location and the type and nature of countermeasures employed in the highway system.

In summary safety analyst is a suite of tools that includes all the methods of roadway safety management process along with the integration of statistically proven EB technique for determining traffic safety.

With these tools and modules in mind, Figure 5 illustrates the conceptual framework for the proposed Visualization System.



FIGURE 5: Conceptual framework for the proposed visualization system for Safety Analyst

3.2 Input Data

For input, Safety Analyst requires characteristics data for crashes, traffic and roadways, and/or ramps, and/or intersections. Each crash location has to be mapped to the location of a roadway segment, a ramp, or an intersection. Safety Analyst requires mapping to based on one of four location reference systems: be the Route/County/Milepost, the Route/Milepost, the Section/County/Distance, or the Section/Distance (ITT Corporation, 2011). As mentioned earlier, Safety Analyst has two methods to import data, file import and database-to-database mapping. The file-import method supports extensive markup language (xml) and comma separated value (csv) file formats. The database-to-database mapping method requires a database in a relational

database management system. In addition, the database has to exist in a format supported by Safety Analyst.

A comprehensive database was created with the data from various sources, such as the roadway network; the highway performance management system (HPMS); the Travel Demand Model (TDM); and data for crashes, signal controls, intersections and annual average daily traffic (AADT). ArcGIS as well as data management tools developed by the University of Nevada, Las Vegas (UNLV) were used in the process to check consistency, integrate, extract, load, and transform the data. A comprehensive database was created storing all the crash, geographic, ramp, intersection, and roadway and traffic data in a raw format. The database developed required a particular formatting as Safety Analyst accepts its own compatible data format. Therefore, a View Tool was created to map the developed database in a database view consistent with the requirements of Safety Analyst.

Using Safety Analyst's Data Management Tool, the View database was mapped to the Safety Analyst database, using database-to-database mapping, in the data import. Then, post-processing was completed to develop site subtypes; calibration was performed as well in order to calibrate coefficients of the default Safety performance functions. The network screening module in the Analytical Tool was used to identify and rank sites with the potential for safety improvements. Using the module for diagnosis and countermeasure selection, top-ranked sites were diagnosed, and several countermeasures were selected. Using the module for economic analysis and priority ranking, selected countermeasures were analyzed and ranked based on economic measures.

18

3.3 Location Referencing System

As mentioned earlier the Safety Analyst supports four different types of location reference system for different facilities. It requires the location of segment, ramps or intersections in any of the following four systems (ITT Corporation, 2011).

- i. Route/Milepost: In this system, a milepost value is assigned along the route of a particular facility. For example, the location of a roadway segment is provided with name or route number and its numeric begin and end milepost value.
- ii. Route/County/Milepost: In this system, a milepost value is assigned to a route in a county. For example, the location of a roadway segment is provided with route name or route number, county name or county code and its numeric begin and end milepost values.
- iii. Route/Section/Distance: In this system a segment length is assigned to a route instead of the milepost values. For example, the location of a roadway segment is provided with route name or number, section ID or code and the distance of the segment.
- iv. Section/Distance: In this system, a route name or number is not provided. SectionId or code and the numeric distance of the segment are assigned to a particular route.

All the roadway inventory data for the Safety Analyst needs to be generated using one of the above mentioned any one of the four location reference system. Safety Analyst identifies the facility type and assigns the crash locations based on these location reference systems. In addition, the crash data also must possess either a milepost location or a distance value to exactly locate on any type of facility. For this study, Route/County/Milepost location reference system was used. The milepost values for each crash data can be computed using the Linear Referencing System of Arc map. The Linear Referencing System is the standard method of spatially referencing any feature by determining its relative location along a measured linear feature (ArcGIS Resource Center, 2010). This system is very important for both the visualization tool i.e. Google map and ArcGIS map, as it correctly locates the spatial location of potential sites of improvement in the maps.

3.4 Output Files

Safety Analyst provides an output in tabular format. The output from the networkscreening module in the Analytical Tool is available in csv, portable document format (pdf), rich text format (rtf), and hypertext markup language (html) (ITT Corporation, 2011). Figure 6 shows the network screening results in html format and figure 7 shows the csv format.

Firefo		Network	Screening	g Report		+												. 5 ×
4 8	He:///C:	/Program File	es (x86)/	AASHTOWare	Safety Analy	st/users/adm	ninistrator/w6(s1)	p1_rpt.1.html#	seci								े न ए 🖉 - fal Starth 🔎 📑 +	事 音
Most	sted	Getting St	ated [Suggested	Skes 🗌 We	b Slice Gale	ry .											
1. N Basic N Safety A Data se	letw etwork S nalyst, v4 Little : Dal	ork S creening (w 13.1, packa taset2	CTEE with Peal ged Ju	ening k Searching n 28, 2013 B	Repor an roadway 50 AM on si	t segments a_dev.corp.	and CV test) exelising com											4
Data se Data se Sile Typ Potentia Acciden Screeni Analysis Major Pi Area We Area We Area We Area We Limiting CV limit Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe Numbe	t created tes Segme I for Safe Seventy og Attribu Period aconstru- oghts (Fr Value (R (roadwar of siles of segm of segm of segm of segm of ramp	2 val PM hents ents: Peak I My Improver Lavet Total de Acciden From 2006 ction: No m urad) 1,0 foan) 1,0 f	Searchin ment Us il accide t Month To 2011 rajor rec sgments ist 9276 9278 9278 9278 9260 92 aluated aluated 1 0	ng sing: Expecte ents = January, F 1 5) 5.0 crashe 8 76 1481.718 0	d accident f ebruary, Mar accurred at a isimilyr	requency ch; April, M	lay, June, July, A Jiring The analys	wgust Septen	nber, October, I	Nøvember, De	cember							
Numbe Screeni	of sites 19 fime :	flagged: 28 2 minutes,	198 50 seca	inds			1	6	Table 1. Ba	asic Network S	Screening (with Peak	Searching) on roadwa	ny segment	s and	CV fest)	_
10	Site Type	Site Subtype	County	y Route	Site Start Location	Site End Location	Average Observed Accidents for Fotice Site ²	Average Observed	Predicted Accident	Expected Accident	Variance"	Start Location	End	No. of Espected	No. of Expected	Rink	Additional Windows of Interest	
101278	Segment	SegUrb, Multiane divided	3	Route CR 122385, County 3, Milepost 11 627	11.627	11.631	883.42	883 42	30.95	724.02	99.05	11.627	11.631			1	2 • •	
144261	Segnent	Seg/Urb; Mutilane divided	3	Route OR 110219, County 3, Miepost 4 624	4.624	454	338.70	333.70	27.89	312.37	53,67	4.624	4 839			2	2	
113097	Segment	SegUrti, Multiane divided	3	Route CR 189603, County 3, Milepost 26.626	26.626	26.661	538.83	533.83	1.01	291 96	27.58	25 625	25.661			3	• ·	
225	Segment	SegiUrb; Mutilane divided	3	Route SR 135, County 3, Milepost 0.099	0.099	0.123	261.29	261 29	62.48	257,48	43.98	0.099	0.123				c •]	
4782	Segnent	Seglura; Mubliane divided	3	Route SR 28, County 3, Miepost 29.664	29.664	31.201	83,27	252.08	\$6.85	251.05	44,53	29.764	29.864			5	128 684, 23754, 23 684, 29 584, 23 684, 30 684, 30 684, 30 164, 30 164, 30 284, 30 284, 30 284, 30 384, 30 484 50 484, 30 584, 30 584, 30 688, 30 684, 30 784, 30 784, 30 884, 30 884, 30 584, 30 584, 31 684, 31 164, 31 164 31 101, 31 2011	
124962	Segment	SegUrti, Multiane divided	з	Route CR 111773 County 3, Milepost 14.345	14.345	14.395	241.03	241 03	46.05	236.69	.38.53	14.345	14.395			6		

FIGURE 6 Network screening results in html format

1016	a Sarch the Source Lanuary String Nam Data Window 2
190	HERE AN ARE ADDRESS OF THE REPORT OF THE REPORT OF
-60	
100	ot. How I
and the second	Inclusteries, Agenory LL, 10, Sitte 10, 611 (D, Sitte Type, Jourty, Boute , Boute Type, Hourdebene, Bector, Jitte End, Jitte End, Jitte Dird, Di
13	Curue 325, Regment: 0.011 0.009 0.123, 14010, Sensent, Sep (7b); Baltilane divided, J. "Bourt 315, Court 3. Bisport 0.099, 0.123, 251, 29, 234, 29, 241, 29, 244,
2	Tales, 778, Begenn 2011 29, 662 29, 763, 30115, Jegenn, Soy Ont. Billiam invite, 1, "Anne 18 18, County 1, Bilegen 19 664, 18, 31, 19, 84, 11, 101, 81, 100, 43, 64, 81, 80, 13, 17, 10, 19, 64, 17, 10, 19, 164, 17, 10, 19, 104, 17, 10, 19, 104, 17, 10, 19, 104, 17, 10, 19, 104, 17, 10, 19, 104, 104, 104, 104, 104, 104, 104, 104
3	<pre>Autor straingerm_multiprefs_lbstrates(), Strament, and Outor Builtiane Strates(), House Bild, Bil</pre>
iii.	Tailey /voj.segent null_loide_loid_sty.2000.segent.segvorb Bultiane divide_s,"Fourte Dt di courty Rilegot Divert_Rie,Di,Di,Di,Bultiane,Divide,Di,Di,Segunt null_Strategot Strategot Dt divide,Di courty Rilegot Divert_Rie,Di,Di,Di,Bultiane,Di courte Dt di Courty St divert Dt Divide Dt Div
11	[Talae, 4792, Aspenser_mul]_0.143, 0.143, 0.0143, 5818, 0.5808, 0.58080, 0.58070000, Mailtonia Viendei, 2, "Bone ser 18-10, County 3, Milepost 39, 6447, 581, 28, 28, 484, 21, 201, 381, 377, 140, 94, 565, 140, 15, 265, 140, 150, 265, 140, 150, 150, 150, 150, 150, 150, 150, 15
14	[Falser, 4792, hegment_mill, 10.464_10.564, 56115, jegment_564/7002; Multilane divided.3, "Boate BH 26, Councy 3, Billepart 29, 664", 367, 10.29, 664; 311, 00, 61, 77, 21, 55, 66, 55, 21, 49, 74, 20, 464, 30, 264, 30, 30, 30, 30, 30, 30, 30, 30, 30, 30
11	Talie, 472, Segment mul 30.64 30.748, 55810, Segment.5470Hr Maltiane divided, 3 "Poster BF 20, County 3, Hispart 25, 664", 58, 20, 20, 464, 51, 20, 10, 37, 47, 51, 65, 51, 65, 51, 50, 56, 40, 30.764,, false, 472, Segment mul 30.764 30.7
10	Taise 1992 Regent null 30.644 30.644 18610. Regent Set Dis Mittiane divided. 1 Monte 18 30. County 3. Hilport 30.644 18.28, 20.644 11.001.49.27 (31.47).55.65, 01.461 (6.04, 30.644, 3
曲.	Tailed 4792, Regent mult 11.044 [11.044 [11.044, 10.04], Septemb Septemb Ruttines (11.044, 11.
	<pre>time:/vse.idepent_init_init_init_init_init_init_init_i</pre>
2	Case_locks_segment_mil
14	<pre>interclosed control of the second secon</pre>
5	<pre>states.eto00.egument.mil_11.417.4_01.45.7_comparent.pdg/usin multiant divided; revuel to 50000, councy x, milepoet 37.000. cv. 100001, cr.4_17.7.00, 37.00,</pre>
Ë.	[cale:370].6ggment_milig.089_0.999_3007., 05ggment.deg/tbc) hulsiame Mivided.7, Pointe SP 126, County 3. Milepoet 0.0097, 37, 127, 0-009, 8074, 46, 13, 56, 37, 0-47, 85, 37, 0-45, 308, 0.009, 0.0
11	[fales, 5379, Segment null_1:069_1:169_15072; Segment, Seg/Unc: Nulliane divided, 3, "Boute 50 126, County 3, Mileport 0, 0609, 50 126, Co 060, 6, 076, 66 1, 110, 16, 30, 47, 132, 29, 19, 45, 10, 209, 1-169,, , [Sales, 5379, Segment null_1:169_1:10
2	[Salas.3578.359gent null_1:09_1:089.35072, jegench.9ey/Wcbr Nulliame divided/y."Route 91 126, County 3, Milepost 0.0892", 51,125, j.0.069, 6.076;45,13,76;12;26,477,96;14,5;09;1,109,,, [Salas.3579.3egent null]:069_1:089.15072, j.egench.269[Wcb Nulliame divided/y."Route 91 126, County 3, Milepost 0.0892", 51,125, j.0.069, 6.076;45,13,77,16;14,5;09;1,109,, [Salas.3579.3epent null]:069_1:089_1:050;31040;31
E.	false 5570, Segment null 1:509_1:509,5572, Segment, Seg/NDD, Nultilame divided, 3, "Boute B 120, County 3, Milepost 0.3689", 581,123, 0.089,5.075(4:1), 47.50;23,47,47.12;03,94,1589,1.658,, Segment null 1:609_1:789,500,72, Segment, 592/ND, Nultilame divided, 3, "Boute B 120, County 3, Milepost 0.3689", 581,123, 0.089,5.075(4:1), 47.50;24,47,47.12;03,194,1589,1.658,, Segment null 1:609_1:789,500,72,149,1492,100,100,100,100,100,100,100,100,100,10
11	fairs, 3579, Segment, null 1:709 1:809, 35072, 3egment, Seg/Hbb Muitlane divided, 3, "Poute B 128, County 3, Hileport 0.0697, 5, 128, 1076, 46, 11, 49, 14, 28, 47, 46, 75, 11, 11, 179, 1, 808, 3072, 34, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10
10	Taise 3500 Segment 2011 1 080 1 000 35071, Regent Reg/Unit Militians divided, 1 Pours 9 1 106, county 1, Milegent 0,005 48, 128, 0,080 a 076, 44:13,080,10,471,000,144,1,900,0000,
ŭ.,	false, 5579, Segment_uil_1.060_1.050, 55072, / Regment, SegVices Builtiane divisit, 7, Poure SF 116, Court), Bispect 0.8099, db, 116, 0.885, 61076, 44.11, 1.15, 0.74, 11.65, 11.95, 11.05, 1.1
12	<pre>cases = respective control = respective respective</pre>
	[states.1579, Begenet_moli 1, 3187 2, 3187 2, 3187 2, 349 300 2
	[False, 5579, Segment_mill 1, 1889 1, 2019], 55072, Segment, Neg/Hrb: Builtiane divised, J. "Fourier BP 126, County 1, Bilepiont 0.0899, 5011, 10, 0-589, 6,0179, 46,11, 477, 74, 21, 471, 47, 47, 77, 52, 0018, 1, 389,, [Indee, 5579, Segment_mill 2, 089, 100, 55073, Segment_Neg/UP 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10,
10	<pre>[saise.j579, Separat uii] 1:08]:109</pre>
4	

FIGURE 7 Network screening results in csv format

The csv file is used at the back end to process the results, and the pdf and rtf files are used at the front end for generating editable reports. The other three modules provide output in html, pdf, and rtf file formats. Table1 shows the output for the five top-ranked sites from the network screening module of the Analytical Tool.

					Site	Site	Average		Location	with Highest	<mark>t Potentia</mark>	<mark>l for Safety</mark>	<mark>/ Improve</mark>	ment		
ID	Site Type	Site Subtype	County	Route	Start Locatio n	End Locati on	Accidents for Entire Site*	Average Observed Accidents*	Predicted Accident Frequency*	Expected Accident Frequency*	Variance **	Start Location	End Location	No. of Expected Fatalities	No. of Expected Injuries	Rank
41046	Segment	Seg/Urb; One-way arterial	3	Route I 1, County 3, Milepost 39.56902	39.569	40.223	233.77	946.1	16.3	864.97	169.76	40.12275	40.22275			1
6557	Segment	Seg/Urb; One-way arterial	3	Route I 1, County 3, Milepost 43.93078	43.9308	44.364	81.07	221.79	12.23	197.66	38.41	44.2642	44.3642			2
7015	Segment	Seg/Urb; One-way arterial	3	Route I 1, County 3, Milepost 35.11215	35.1122	35.768	96.9	203.73	15.67	186.08	37.75	35.61215	35.71215			3
6612	Segment	Seg/Urb; One-way arterial	3	Route I 1, County 3, Milepost 36.72353	36.7235	36.979	67.78	198.62	15.43	181.41	36.28	36.87908	36.97908			4
6607	Segment	Seg/Urb; One-way arterial	3	Route I 1, County 3, Milepost 37 59608	37.5961	38.062	226.08	193.82	16.68	178.35	35.85	37.89607	37.99607			5

TABLE 1 Format for Safety Analyst Results from Network Screening

CHAPTER 4

VISUALIZATION SYSTEM FOR SAFETY ANALYST

In general, the data used in traffic safety has a spatial context. In 2011, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) released a peer-exchange summary report on the applications of GIS for highway safety (FHWA, 2011). This report summarized GIS capabilities and the spatial nature of data availability at various State DOTs. This report expressed a concern about the lack of visualization capabilities for safety programs among safety engineering professionals.

Assimilating the spatial capabilities of outputs for data and state-of-the-art tools, the proposed Visualization System for Safety Analyst includes two tools with alternative displays: Google Map and ArcGIS; both have multiple complimentary menus of the results, including spatial maps, tables, bar charts, and editable reports. The proposed system interacts with Safety Analyst to assist the user in every step of the analysis.

4.1 Google Maps Display Tool for Visualization

The Visualization System with a Google Map display was designed with multiple GIS functions – such as zoom in, zoom out, pan, and select sites – that allow the user to interact with the graphical display. Python, Java, JavaScript, HTML and CSS applications, at the back end, read, parse, extract, and process output files from Safety Analyst. Input data for locations, combined with the output data, is projected on the Google Map display. In this process, the coordinate system for the input location (NAD_1983_UTM_Zone_11N) is automatically converted to Google Map's projection system (GCS_WGS_1984). This tool provides support for all the four modules of the

Analytical Tool in Safety Analyst. The user can use this tool as a desktop or web-based application.

The network-screening module has two different methods to analyze the sites, (i) a conventional network-screening method and (ii) a method that provides a percentage report by site type. In turn, each method has several network-screening algorithms. The first method has six different algorithms and the second method has three different algorithms. Figure 8, 9 and 10 illustrates how the desktop application enables a user to choose the output file for a specific analysis method.



FIGURE 8 Selection of a Module using the Standalone Desktop Application

SafetyAnalyst - Network Screening	
Conventional Network Screening Method :	
Basic Network Screening (with Peak Searching on Roadway	Segments and CV 🔻
Percentage Report by Site Type Method :	
Basic Network Screening (with Peak Searching on Roadway	Segments and CV
Module 1 output file of SafetyAnalyst :	
	Browse
OK	Cancel
	Sunsy



Application

Conventional Network Scree	ming Method :
Basic Network Screening (with Peak	Searching on Roadway Segments and CV 🔻
Basic Network Screening (with Peak 3 Basic Network Screening (with Sliding Job Proportion of Specific Accident T	Searching on Roadway Segments and CV test) I Window on Roadway Segments)
Sudden Increase in Mean Accident Fre	squency
Steady Increase in Mean Accident Fre Corridor Screening	quency
	Browse
	OK Cancel

FIGURE 10 Selection of algorithm using the Standalone Desktop Application for

Safety Analyst

The web-based application displays a comprehensive interface over the internet with the deployment of Safety Analyst results. Figure 11 shows the web interface of the Safety Analyst visualization, using a Google Maps display. A dropdown box is provided for each network screening method in order to select the type of algorithm output.

UNLV SafetyAnalyst Data Visualization Tool Module 1 Module 2 Module 3 Module 3 Module 3 Module 3 Module 3 Module 3 UNLV SafetyAnalyst D UNLV SafetyAnalyst Data Visualizer, which will take your SafetyAnalyst, and supply it a report file. If you have and select a module of SafetyAnalyst, and supply it a report file. If you have and	ute 4 ata Visualization Tool o insert Safety-Analyst results into a database, create graphs and display the results on Google Maps. To get started, simply eady done so, then your visualization results will be viewable instantly.
Select A SafetyA	nalyst Module
Module I Network: Screening Conventional Report Percentage Report Peak Searching Sliding Window Specific Accident Type Sudden Increase in Mean Accidents Steady Increase in Mean Accidents Corridor Screening	Module II Diagnosis and Countermeasure Selection Diagnosis and Countermeasure Selection
Module III Economic Appraisal and Priority Ranking Economic Appraisal and Priority Ranking	Module IV Counfermeasure Evaluation Countermeasure Evaluation

FIGURE 11 Web interface of output visualization for Safety Analyst, using Google

Map

For network screening results, three complementary visualization options are provided by the web based application. Three tabs provide these options:

(i) The first tab enables the user to choose the ranking of the sites and generates, for the desired ranks, Figure 12 which provides a side by side display of spatial and tabular output. The Google Map is provided with a function to select the ranked sites with balloon icons. The icons have different colors to distinguish roadway segments, ramps, and intersections as shown in figure 13 (a), (b) and (c). The roadway segment and ramp sites are displayed as a line shape, using 'begin' and 'end' mileposts of the segment. The user can zoom in or select the specific site by clicking the balloon icons. Once the site is selected in Google Maps, the corresponding row of the site is highlighted in an adjacent table section.

Conventions		anor	e Ha	in	~ [)ook	Sooro	hin		D D	ood	WOW	Sar		onto		
Conventiona		Choose th	L US e sites with	poterifiai	J F for safe	Y improvements	Searc based on the Safe	tyAnalyst's n	g OI etwork scre	ening mod	Jau 14	way	Set	Jine	ents		
iow information for sites starting from rank	10	Show	r Sites and	OTheirh	nforma	äon!											
Site Information Site Map Charts and Graphs Full Report																	
Nap Satellite								Roa	dway S Window v	egmen with Highes	ts Potential fr	r Safety Imp	rovement				
Fam He Aliante Nature Discovery Part	Rank	Site ID	Site Subtype	County	Route Name	Site Start Location (milepost)	Site End Location (milepost)	Average Observed Accidents	Window Start Location	Window End Location	Average Observed Accidents	Predicted Accident Frequency	Expected Accident Frequency	Variance	No. of Expected Fatalities	No. of Expected Injuries	Additional Windo of Interest
Mona new mona new	T	41046	Seg/Urb; One-way arterial	3	nal	39.5890124191	40.2227485724	258	40.12275	40.22275	1078.08	19.32	1006.87	180.48			39.56902_39.660 39.66902_39.769 39.76902_39.869 39.96902_39.965 39.96902_40.065 40.06902_40.185 40.12275_40.22;
Las da l'indice White	2	6588e_8588f	Seg/Urb) Muttiene dtvided	3	null	2.917	3.657	94.15	3.317	3,417	249.99	45.79	248.83	44.74			2917_3.017; 3.017_3.117; 3.117_3.217; 3.217_3.317; 3.417_3.517; 3.517_3.517; 3.617_3.717; 3.717_3.817; 3.804_3.904'
March Barrelo	3	3679a	Seg/Orb, Mumlane divided	3	null	0.885	1.574	88.68	1 289	1,389	229,96	77.72	229.33	43.77			0.889_0.989 0.989_1.089 1.089_1.189 1.189_1.289 1.389_1.489 1.389_1.489
Rench Mail Dark Map data #2010 Google Territor Use Reports map entr		101607 27664	Contint	2	eo ill	77.964	37.484	104.47	27.204	27 404	216.97	20.02	216.01	20.02			19/4_1014

FIGURE 12 Visualization of network screening results in spatial and tabular format





FIGURE 13 Visualization for (a) Roadway Segments, (b) Ramps and (c)

Intersections

(ii) The second tab generates bar charts for various safety performance measures, such as observed, predicted, and expected crash frequencies (Figure 14). In addition, the user can select the type of graphs as either a stacked bar chart or a simple bar chart.



FIGURE 14 Visualization of network screening results in spatial and bar chart

format

(iii)The third tab generates a Safety Analyst report with all results. The user has an option to edit this report with the inclusion of spatial site locations and bar charts (Figure 15).

C UNLY Safety Analyst Ditterfor X	*	- 2 3
UNLV SafetyAnalyst Data Visualization Tool Modes	9475 Belefon - Ebita File Uptrade:	W 1
Conventional	Report Using Peak Searching on Roadway Segments Choose the sales with patiential for salely improvements based on the SaleBehave(rts network screening module. Show Sales and Their Morrinduori	
Site Information Site Step Charts and Graphs Fall Report		
	Vew in RTF furnalt	
	Safety Analyst Network Screening Report]
	New 26, 2013	Ľ

FIGURE 15 Visualization of network screening results in spatial and report format

The second module, Diagnosis and Countermeasure Selection, does not require visualization support, necessarily, because the interpretation of its output is straightforward. However, the proposed visualization tool provides an interface with the accident summary report, and collision diagram generated by Safety Analyst, along with the corresponding site map (Figure 16). This module can be expanded to include a condition diagram (AASHTO, 2010b).

 C Lookas Inc. 	10 II. (A)
and the second	



Module II - Diagnosis and Countermeasure Selection



Figure 17 shows how the results from the third module are provided to the user by Safety Analyst, and Figure 18 illustrates the results as provided by the Google Map display tool. Measures for economic appraisal include the countermeasure cost per accident reduced, the benefit-cost ratio and/or the net present value (ITT Corporation, 2011). The user has the option to use default values or the state-specific value for various attributes used in the calculation of the economic appraisal methods. Priority ranking is provided for alternative countermeasures of a specific site or for countermeasures of multiple sites, based on the economic appraisal. It is easy and beneficial to compare the results for alternative countermeasures of single and multiple sites in a graphical format. The application provides the location of multiple selected sites on a Google Map, a table with all the relevant information for each site, and bar charts for the desired variables.

Econo	mic Analysis			÷												. 6 ×
€ file:///C:/Progra	m Files (x86)/SafetyAr	nalyst/us	ærs/administr	ator/w3/	s1/p24.rpt.:	3.html#_sec3							17 1 C 🚮 • Googe			<u>۹</u>
Ant Visted 🗍 Getting) Started 🗌 Suggest	ted Ster	- Webs	ice Galler	ý											D Bookmarks
Previous: Summary of P	Proposed Counterns	935079	Input Parar	nelers)				1	able Of Contents)							Next Priority Ranking
3. Economi	c Apprais	al														
Economic Appraisal Out	put Report															
Types of Economic Analy Cost-effectiveness EFDO-Based Cost-effect Benefit-cost Ratio Net Benefit Optimization Years of Diata Considere History Period Available Major Reconstruction: No	yses Performed: tweness d: years (1985 - 2002) a major reconstructio	on eccu	med at any:	sites du	ring the his	story period										
Analysis Period: Implementation Year: 20 Years To Analyze: 20	13															
Minimum Attractive Rate	of Return (Percent):	4														
Accident Costs by Sever Fata: 15,000,000 Severe Iniury; 1402,000 Minor Injury; 142,000 Minor Injury; 142,000 Property Damage Only; 1 EPDO Weights: Fata: 1,450 Severe Injury; 10 Sentus Injury; 10	ity: 4,000															
Property Damage Only: 1																
								Table 2	2. Economic Apprai	sal						
	Proposed Site-CM	Site ID	Site Type	County	Route	Beginning Location	Ending Location	Countermeasure	CM Start Location	CM End Location	Construction Cost	Cost Effectiveness	Cost Effectiveness EPDO	Benefit Cost Ratio	Het Benefit	
	<u>H</u>	463	Intersection	69	00000064	7.35		Restrict novements to right-in and right-out at the access using channelizing Island	7.35		\$10,000	\$592	\$71	26.16	\$421,503	
	2	<u>463</u>	Intersection	69	00000064	7.35	1	Increase enforcement to reduce speed on intersection approach	735		\$5,000	\$2,498	\$300	6.20	\$367,589	
	3	453	Intersection	69	00000054	7.35		Narrow cross section by reducing number of approach lanes	735		\$30,000	\$1,777	\$213	672	\$387,991	_
	4	<u>453</u>	Intersection	69	00000054	7.35		Narrow cross section by physically narrowing lanes	735		\$10,000	\$1,079	\$130	14,35	\$407,731	
	0	453	Intersection	69	00000054	7.35		Change streetscape to increase stimulation of perinteral vision	735		\$10,080	\$52	\$71	26.16	\$421,503	

FIGURE 17 Economic appraisal results, as provided by Safety Analyst

🗧 👌 locathost 2000/module3		 			Crim C Scope	 P □• ↓ ★
🔏 Most Visited 🗍 Getting Started 🛄 Suggested Sites 🛄 Web Site Galer	ý					
UNLV SafetyAnalyst Data Visualization Tool		Module 3	Modula 4			

Module III - Economic Appraisal and Priority Ranking





proposed Visualization System

The visualization for the fourth module, countermeasure evaluation, was developed to provide the graphs of the 'before' and 'after' evaluations of the implemented countermeasures. The Google Map is used to display the site location in order to advance the improvement of the potential sites after the implementation of countermeasure.

4.2 ESRI ArcGIS Display Tool for Visualization

This tool assimilates various functions of ArcGIS with Safety Analyst outputs to give an application-based spatial visualization. ArcGIS is known for its strong ability to map and visualize data, integrate and share data, provide spatial and statistical analyses of data, and its customization capabilities (ESRI, Undated). Currently, this tool supports only the network-screening module. Visualization with ArcGIS tools provides further modeling and computing capabilities. At the front end, this tool has a map view frame, a data layers frame, a browser window, selection windows, and menu tabs. At the back end are Python scripts that read, parse, extract, and process the output from Safety Analyst. Figure 19 displays the GUI of the visualization.



FIGURE 19 Visualization with an ArcGIS portal view

Map Viewer and Data Layer Frame

The Map viewer displays the base maps from the ArcGIS. The map viewer, along with the navigation bar, allows the user to execute basic operations, such as zoom in, zoom out, pan, and full extent. It has operational tools, including selecting and unselecting data elements in the map; and adding base layer maps, such as Open Street maps, Bing maps, or ESRI world imagery maps. The data-layer frame displays the layers being used for the map viewer and analysis. The layers can be turned on or off, based on the needs of the user.

File-browser Function

The browser window enables the user to choose the desired output file. At the back end of the tool, a Python script processes csv output files from Safety Analyst. This script maps the Agency Site ID of the Safety Analyst output file with the agency site ID of the existing source or base layers, i.e., roadway segments, ramps, or intersections. Consequently, this functionality avoids stating the coordinate system to project and overlay with the base layers.

Selection Function

By means of the selection window, sites with the highest potential for safety improvement can be selected based on network screening ranks. With this function, Python scripts at the back end select and highlight the ranked sites on the map. In addition, the user has an option to select ranked sites based on Functional Classification/Site ID or vice versa. For example, the user can enter 'Functional Classification as 1' and then click 'Select', and the map viewer displays all the ranked sites based on 'From Rank' and 'To Rank'.

Menu Tabs

Three complimentary displays are embedded in the menu tab beneath the map viewer. Based on the selection of ranks, the Graph tab displays the stacked bar chart, as shown in Figure 20. The stacked bar chart summarizes the performance measures for observed, predicted, and expected crash frequencies provided by Safety Analyst. Figure 21 shows the enlarged version of the bar chart generated by the proposed visualization tool. The table tab shows the Safety Analyst output in the table format, and the report tab generates the report in an editable version.



FIGURE 20 Visualization of network screening results in spatial and bar chart

format



FIGURE 21 Enlarged view of the bar chart generated by the visualization tool

Data Editing Function:

This function allows the user to open and edit the attribute table of the source or base layer file. The user can easily rewrite the attributes and save for future reference. The user can make a copy of the original source layer and perform the editing function to save as a new layer file.

CHAPTER 5

EVALUATION OF THE VISUALIZATION SYSTEM

A survey questionnaire was developed and used to evaluate, to the extent possible, the effectiveness of the propose visualization system. The survey questionnaire is provided in Appendix A. Given various time constraints and limited resources, only the Google Maps version of the proposed visualization system was evaluated. The survey was developed with questions grouped in three major categories:

- Experience with Safety Analyst and the proposed Visualization System
- Usability
- Experience of the respondents on various transportation fields

The first category included questions to capture the users' familiarity with the Analytical Tool in Safety Analyst. In addition, questions were designed to capture the user's experience and associated preference with results provided using and not using the proposed Visualization System. The second category of questions sought to evaluate the overall usability of the Visualization System. The third category of questions was designed to collect relevant information about the technical background of the responders.

5.1 Data Collection

In order to include a representative sample of the population of potential users of the Visualization Tool, the survey was administered only to traffic safety engineers, transportation engineers and transportation engineering students. A hands on tutorial of Safety Analyst and the developed Visualization System was provided to NDOT engineers and planners as well as to members of the safety engineering team of the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR). Similarly, the tutorial was also provided to transportation engineering students at the University of Nevada, Las Vegas. Finally, a similar tutorial was provided to interested participants of 93rd Transportation Research Board (TRB) Annual Meeting, 2014. Altogether, a total of 38 responses were collected. Table 2 provides the counts of responses.

Respondents	Count	Percentage
NDOT and UNR	11	29%
UNLV	22	58%
TRB	5	13%
Total Respondents	38	100%

 TABLE 2 Total Number of Responses

5.2 Data Coding

Most of the questions were prepared using a 5 point Likert scale starting from Strongly Agree to Strongly Disagree. Codes were assigned to each answer given numerical weight. Table 3 shows the options to the answers as well as the corresponding codes/weights. These codes were used to compute the mean value of responses. Questions with a large mean value are associated with Strongly Agree. In contrast, questions with a small mean value are associated with Strongly Disagree.

Answer Options	Code	_
Strongly Agree	5	
Agree	4	
Neutral	3	
Disagree	2	
Strongly Disagree	1	

TABLE 3 Number Coding For the Type of Answer of the Respondents

5.3 Distribution of Responses

An important aspect to consider is how much experience influences users' perceptions and preferences.

5.3.1 Experience with Traffic Safety Studies

Table 4 provides the distribution of responses with experience conducting traffic safety studies.

Categories	Total Respondents
experience group with 1-5 years	53%
experience group with 6-10 years	18%
experience group with 11-15 years	13%
experience group with 16+ years	16%

TABLE 4 Total Numbers of Responses with Traffic Safety Experience

The large number of sample in group 1-5 is a consequence of having the majority of the respondents being UNLV students.

5.3.2 Experience with Traffic Engineering Studies

Table 5 provides the distribution of responses with experience conducting traffic engineering studies.

TABLE 5 Total Numbers	of Responses in with	Traffic Engineering Ex	perience
------------------------------	----------------------	-------------------------------	----------

Categories	Total Respondents	
experience group with 1-5 years	47%	
experience group with 6-10 years	21%	
experience group with 11-15 years	18%	
experience group with 16+ years	13%	

5.3.3 Experience with Traffic Planning Studies

Table 6 provides the distribution of responses with experience conducting transportation planning studies.

TABLE 0 Total Numbers of Respondents with Transportation Training Experience	TABLE 6	5 Total N	umbers of	f Respo	ondents	with '	Trans	portation	Planning	, Ex	perienc
--	---------	-----------	-----------	---------	---------	--------	-------	-----------	----------	------	---------

Categories	Total Respondents	
experience group with 1-5 years	58%	
experience group with 6-10 years	11%	
experience group with 11-15 years	24%	
experience group with 16+ years	8%	

5.3.4 Experience with GIS

Table 7 provides the distribution of responses with GIS experience.

Categories	Total Respondents	
experience group with 1-5 years	55%	
experience group with 6-10 years	34%	
experience group with 11-15 years	11%	

TABLE 7 Total Numbers of Responses with GIS Experience

5.4. Overall Rating

The first section of the questionnaire contained a total of 10 questions. Most of these questions are related to the capabilities of the Visualization System to help the user navigate through the various modules and tools in Safety Analyst. In addition, it contains questions about the capabilities of the System to present and communicate information to the users. Table 8 shows the average rating for the responses received for the questions about the experience of the users with the Visualization System.

Respondents Ratings for the Visualization tool	Mean of Total	Standard	
based on:	Sample	Deviation	
1. Clearly complements SA location options	4.34	0.53	
2. Helps to perform preliminary diagnosis before	4.29	0.65	
going to field			
3. Helps to perform entire diagnosis of the sites	2.37	0.85	
without going to the field			
4. Helps to select effective countermeasure	3.39	0.97	
5. Effectively presents information to decision	4.08	0.54	
makers			
6. Assists in step by step procedures for all SA tools	4.00	0.77	
resulting prompt decision and actions			
7. Is only important for network screening tool of	3.08	1.00	
SA			
8. Finds out the errors in the input data and actual	3.84	0.75	
site characteristics			
9. Enables sharing of information regarding sites	4.00	0.77	
with potential for safety improvement across			
various divisions within an agency			
10. Improves the communication between analyst	4.29	0.52	
and the decision makers			

TABLE 8 Overall Rating about the Experience with the Visualization System

In general, the results clearly indicate the preference for using the Visualization System in conjunction with Safety Analysis. The answers to the first question indicate that the Visualization System clearly complements the location options provided by Safety Analyst. This question has the highest mean value, 4.34, suggesting that it was extremely evident to most of the respondents that the Visualization System complements Safety Analyst in terms of location. The entire diagnosis of the sites with the visualization tool without going to the field was ranked with smallest mean value, 2.37. This is associated with Disagree on the Likert scale. However, the second question stating that the Visualization System helps to perform preliminary diagnosis without going to the field was ranked with the second highest mean value, 4.29. This suggests that although the preliminary diagnosis can be performed using the Visualization System, a detailed diagnosis of the sites without going to the field is not recommended in any case. This is expected as field investigation is a major part of roadway safety management process. The Visualization System is rated with the second highest mean value, 4.29, in terms of its ability to improve communication between the analyst and the decision makers.

5.5. Overall Rating of the Visualization System in Terms of Usability

Table 9 provides the mean values associated with the usability of the proposed Visualization System.

Respondents Ratings of the Visualization tool based	Mean of Total	Standard	
on:	Sample	Deviation	
11. Presentation of results compared to text/table	4.16	0.68	
formats as provided by SA			
12. Helps to learn about SA	3.63	1.13	
13. Demands less time and manual interaction	3.76	0.94	
14. Conveys clear sense to its intended users	3.92	0.94	
15. Very simple to use and visually attractive	3.92	0.94	
16. Makes interaction with SA more intuitive	3.76	0.82	
17. Appropriate for all users	3.55	0.98	

TABLE 9 Overall Rating about the usability of the Visualization System

The responders clearly indicate their preference for using the Visualization System over Safety Analyst alone. This is illustrated by the mean value of 4.16 in question 11. Almost all the questions in this category have mean values near to the "Good" rating in the Likert scale. The lowest mean value, 3.55, is associated with question 17. This suggests that it was almost a neutral average response. Hence, we could conclude that the Visualization System is only appropriate for those users who are familiar with the Safety Analyst.

CHAPTER 6

CONCLUSIONS AND FUTURE WORK

Conclusions

Safety Analyst provides state-of-the-art analysis tools to prepare a comprehensive program for highway safety management. With the advanced empirical Bayes methodology, Safety Analyst has tremendous data analysis capabilities. Safety Analyst includes a map viewer display with very limited visualization capabilities. The Visualization System proposed in this study facilitates the use of Safety Analyst. It provides displays with location and color-coded information as well as charts and tables summarizing safety performance measures. In addition, Google Maps and/or ESRI ArcGIS can be used to generate the displays. The system transforms tabular results into intuitive displays that support both detailed analysis as well as higher-level decision making. The charts provide various degrees of resolution and aggregation.

A survey questionnaire was used to evaluate the effectives of the Visualization System to complement and enhance the capabilities provided by Safety Analyst. The overall analysis suggested that people support the use of the proposed Visualization System for Safety Analyst. In addition, people find the Visualization System easy to use, especially when people are familiar with Safety Analyst.

Future Work

The proposed Visualization System needs to be further developed to enable capabilities to support all the modules in Safety Analyst using the ArcGIS interface. In addition, concepts used by CARE, such as a sliding window to depict crashes (CAPS, 2009a), can be borrowed to enhance the display features of the Visualization System. This sliding window will provide observed, predicted, and expected crash frequencies, which are vital safety performance measures that should be considered for the management and analysis of traffic safety.

LIST OF REFERENCES

- Alluri, P. and Ogle, J. (2011). Road Safety Analysis: States' Current Practices and Their Future Direction. In 91st Annual Meeting *Transportation Research Board*, CD-ROM. Transportation Research Board of the National Academies, Washington, D. C.
- American Automobile Association (AAA). (2013a). *usRAP: United States Road Assessment Program.* Retrieved May 2013 from http://www.usrap.us/home.
- American Automobile Association (AAA). (2013b). usRAP: United States RoadAssessmentProgram.RetrievedJanuary2014fromhttp://www.usrap.us/mapping/MapExamples.cfm
- American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). (2010a). *Highway Safety Manual* (1st Ed.) Vol 2. Washington, DC.
- American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). (2010b). *Highway Safety Manual* (1st Ed.) Vol 1. Washington, DC.
- American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO).
 AASHTOWare Safety Analyst. Undated. Retrieved Nov 15, 2012, from http://www.safetyanalyst.org/
- American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials. (June, 2013).
 Safety Analyst v4.3.1 Release Notes. Retrieved July, 2013 from www.aashtoware.org/Safety/Pages/default.aspx
- ArcGIS Resource Center. (2010). Desktop help 10- Linear referencing datasets in ArcGIS. Retrieved December 2012 from

http://help.arcgis.com/en/arcgisdesktop/10.0/help./index.html#//0039000000600 0000.htm

- Aylo. A. (2010). Developing a GIS Safety Analysis System: A Case Study (Master Thesis). University of Dayton, Dayton, Ohio. Retrieved June, 2013 from https://etd.ohiolink.edu/rws_etd/document/get/dayton1292596270/inline
- Center for Advanced Public Safety (CAPS). (2009a). CARE Critical Analysis Reporting Environment. Retrieved April 2013 from http://care.cs.ua.edu/care.aspx
- Center for Advanced Public Safety (CAPS). (2009b). CARE Critical Analysis Reporting Environment. Retrieved January 2014 from http://caps.ua.edu/online_analysis.aspx
- Environmental Systems Research Institute (ESRI), Inc. Undated. ArcGIS for Desktop-Features. Retrieved June 2013 from http://www.esri.com/software/arcgis/arcgisfor-desktop/features
- Federal Highway Administration. (2011). Applications of GIS for Highway safety-Peer Exchange Summary Report. Retrieved May 2013 from http://www.gis.fhwa.dot.gov/documents/GIS_Safety_Proceedings.pdf
- Gan, A., Haleem, K., Alluri, P., Lu, J., Wang, T., Ma, M., Diaz, C. (2012). Preparing Florida for Deployment of Safety Analyst for all roads. Miami: Lehman Center for Transportation Research, Florida International University.
- Graettinger, A., Lindy, J. K., and Mistry, G. J. (2005). *Display and Analysis of Crash Data*. University Transportation Center for Alabama (UTCA). Tuscaloosa, AL.

Google Developers. (2014). Google Maps API- Usage Limits and Billing. Retrieved March 2014 from

https://developers.google.com/maps/documentation/javascript/usage?hl=fr

ITT Corporation. (2011). Safety Analyst User's Manual. Colorado Springs, CO.

- Krishnakumar, V.K., Pulugurtha, S.S., Nambisan, S. S. (2005). Identification and Ranking of High Pedestrian Crash Zones Using GIS. In the 2000 Annual ESRI International User Conference. San Diego, California.
- LGS Landmark Geographic Solutions INC. (2012). *Comparison: ESRI vs. Google Maps*. Retrieved December 2013 from

http://www.geomapix.com/PDF/Sep2012GX.PDF

- Ma, M., Alluri, P., Gan, A. (2012). Development of a Geographic Information System for Safety Analyst for Location Selection and Output Visualization. In 92nd Annual Meeting of the Transportation Research Board, CD-ROM. Transportation Research Board of the National Academies, Washington, D. C.
- Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT). (2011). *The 2011-2015 Nevada Strategic Highway Safety Plan- A Winning Approach to Safety*. Carson City, NV.
- Ohio Department of Transportation (ODOT). (2012). GIS Crash Analysis Tool (GCAT). Retrieved May, 2013 from https://www.dot.state.oh.us/Divisions/Planning/SPPM/SystemsPlanning/Pages/G

CAT.aspx

Pulugurtha, S. S., Nambisan, S. S., & Maheshwari, P. (2006). Estimating pedestrian counts in urban areas for transportation planning and safety analyses. In 9th

International Conference Applications of Advanced Technology in Transportation. Chicago, IL.

- Qin, X., Wellner, A. (2011). Development of Safety Screening Tool for High Risk Rural Roads in South Dakota. Civil Laboratory for Operations and Safety Engineering In Transportation, South Dakota State University.
- Roche, J. (2000). Geographic Information Systems-Based Crash Data Analysis and the Benefits to Traffic Safety. In the Proceedings of MTC Transportation Scholars Conference. Ames, IA.
- SafeRoadMaps. (2012). *Safe Road Maps: Envisioning Safer Roads*. Retrieved May, 2013 from http://saferoadmaps.org.
- Transportation Research Board. (2010). Achieving Traffic Safety Goals in the United States–Lessons from other Nations. TRB Special Report 300. Washington, D.C.
- Truong, L.T., and Somenahalli, S.V.C. (2011). Using GIS to Identify Pedestrian-Vehicle Crash Hot Spots and Unsafe Bus Stops. In *Journal of Public Transportation*, 14(1), 99-114.
- Xiao, F., Hongyu, Z., Caixia, Y. (2012). Development of Road Maintenance Management System Based on WebGIS. In International Journal of Civil and Environmental Engineering, 6, 333-337.

APPENDIX A

SURVEY QUESTIONNAIRE

Evaluation of the Safety Analyst Visualization Tool

Section I

 Safety Analyst provides four options to locate analysis segments: (i) Route and Milepost, (ii) Route, County and Milepost, (iii) Section and Distance, and (iv) Route, Section and Distance.

Does the visualization tool clearly complement the Safety Analyst location options?
□ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly
Disagree

2. Does the visualization tool help to perform preliminary diagnosis before going to the field?

□ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly Disagree

3. Do you think the entire diagnosis of the problematic sites can be done with the proposed visualization tool without going to the field to investigate?

□ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly Disagree

- 4. Does the proposed visualization tool help to select the effective countermeasures?
 □ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly Disagree
- 5. How would you rate the effectiveness of the proposed visualization tool to present information to decision makers?

□ Very Effective □ Effective □ Neutral □ Ineffective □ Very Ineffective

- 6. Does the proposed visualization tool assist during the step by step procedures for all the Safety Analyst tools, thus facilitating prompt action and decisions?
 □ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly Disagree
- 7. Do you feel that the developed visualization tool is only important for the Network Screening Tool of Safety Analyst?

□ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly Disagree

8. How useful is the proposed visualization tool in terms of finding out the errors in the input data (e.g. actual site characteristics different to the input data)?

□ Extremely Useful □ Useful □ No difference □ Useless □ Extremely Useless

9. How do you feel about the statement "The proposed visualization tool enables sharing of information regarding sites with potential for safety improvement across various divisions within an agency"? For example sharing the safety engineering division information with the planning division.

□ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly Disagree

10. Does the proposed visualization tool help to improve the communication between the analyst and the decision makers?

□ Strongly Agree □ Agree □ Neither Agree nor Disagree □ Disagree □ Strongly Disagree

Section II

11. How do you rate the visualization tool based on the presentation of the results compared to text/table formats as provided by Safety Analyst?

□ Excellent	\Box Good	□ Satisfactory	🗆 Fair	\Box Poor
-------------	-------------	----------------	--------	-------------

12. On a scale from 1 to 5 where 5 is Strongly Agree and 1 is Strongly Disagree, please provide your opinions about the following aspects of the visualization tool:

		1	2	3	4	5
a.	The tool helps to learn about Safety Analyst					
b.	The tool demands less time and manual interaction					
c.	The tool conveys clear sense to its intended users					
d.	It is very simple to use and visually attractive					
e.	The tool makes interaction with Safety Analyst					
	more intuitive					
f.	The tools is appropriate for all level of users					

Section III

13. Please indicate your number of years of experience conducting Traffic Safety studies

- 14. Please indicate your number of years of experience conducting Traffic Engineering studies _____
- 15. Please indicate your number of years of experience conducting Transportation Planning studies _____

16. Please indicate your number of years of experience using GIS _____

17. Comments:

VITAE

Graduate College University of Nevada, Las Vegas

Indira Khanal

Degrees:

Bachelor's Degree in Civil Engineering, 2011

Pulchowk Campus, Institute of Engineering, Tribhuvan University, Nepal

Publications:

Peer-Reviewed Conference Paper

Paz, A., Khanal, I., Veeramisti, N., Baker, J., Belmonte, L., (2014), "Development of a Visualization System for SafetyAnalyst", In: 93rd Annual Meeting of the Transportation Research Board, Washington, DC.

Peer-Reviewed Journal Paper

Paz, A., Khanal, I., Veeramisti, N., Baker, J. and Belmonte, L. Development of a Visualization System for Safety Analyst. *Transportation Research Record: Journal of the Transportation Research Board*, Transportation Research Board of the National Academics, Washington, D.C., 2014.

Thesis Title:

Development of a Visualization System for Highway Safety Management Using

Safety Analyst

Thesis Examination Committee:

Committee Chair, Alexander Paz, Ph.D.

Committee Member, Mohamed Kaseko, Ph.D.

Committee Member, Hualiang (Harry) Teng, Ph.D.

Committee Member, Pramen P. Shrestha, Ph.D.

Graduate Faculty Representative, Brendan Morris, Ph.D.